Summary of Contents

Volume 1

		_		~~~	_	-
	איויו	())	1	\mathbf{CTI}	4 1	M
1 7		\ ///			•	м

FOREST PRACTICES CODE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA ACT

FOREST AND RANGE PRACTICES ACT

FOREST ACT

WILDFIRE ACT

FORESTRY SERVICE PROVIDERS PROTECTION ACT

Appendices

Appendix A. Regulations under the Forest Act

Appendix A1. Administrative Boundaries Regulation, B.C. Reg. 137/2014

Appendix A2. Advertising, Deposits, Disposition and Extension Regulation, B.C. Reg. 55/2006

Appendix A3. Allowable Annual Cut Administration Regulation, B.C. Reg. 69/2009

Appendix A4. Allowable Annual Cut Partition Regulation, B.C. Reg. 32/2011

Appendix A5. Annual Rent Regulation, B.C. Reg. 122/2003

Appendix A6. BC Timber Sales Account Regulation, B.C. Reg. 9/2014

Appendix A7. BC Timber Sales Business Area Regulation, B.C. Reg. 243/2003 [repealed]

Appendix A8. BC Timber Sales Regulation, B.C. Reg. 381/2008, Sch. A

Appendix A9. Christmas Tree Regulation, B.C. Reg. 166/2000

Appendix A10. Community Tenures Regulation, B.C. Reg. 352/2004

Appendix A11. Cut Control Regulation, B.C. Reg. 578/2004

Appendix A12. Cutting Permit Postponement Regulation, B.C. Reg. 284/2007

- Appendix A13. Disposition and Change of Control Regulation, B.C. Reg. 351/2004
- Appendix A14. Effective Director Regulation, B.C. Reg. 243/94
- Appendix A15. First Nation Tenures Regulation, B.C. Reg. 104/2011
- Appendix A16. Forest Accounts Receivable Interest Regulation, B.C. Reg. 406/98
- Appendix A17. Forest Licence Regulation, B.C. Reg. 203/2012, Sch. 2
- Appendix A18. Forest Revenue Audit Regulation, B.C. Reg. 319/2006
- Appendix A19. Licence to Cut Regulation, B.C. Reg. 221/2006
- Appendix A20. Free Use Permit Regulation, B.C. Reg. 335/99
- Appendix A21. Innovative Forestry Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 197/97
- Appendix A22. Interest Rate Under Various Statutes Regulation, B.C. Reg. 386/92
- Appendix A23. Log Salvage Regulation for the Vancouver Log Salvage District, B.C. Reg. 220/81
- Appendix A24. Manufactured Forest Products Regulation, B.C. Reg. 240/2003
- Appendix A25. Minimum Stumpage Rate Regulation, B.C. Reg. 354/87
- Appendix A26. Mountain Pine Beetle Salvage Area No. 3, B.C. Reg. 245/2008
- Appendix A27. Performance Based Harvesting Regulation, B.C. Reg. 175/95
- Appendix A28. Refusal of Cutting Permit or Road Permit Regulation, B.C. Reg. 252/2018
- Appendix A29. Scaling Regulation, B.C. Reg. 446/94
- Appendix A30. Special Forest Products Regulation, B.C. Reg. 241/2003, Sch.
- Appendix A31. Surrender Regulation, B.C. Reg. 181/2016
- Appendix A32. Timber Definition Regulation, B.C. Reg. 401/87
- Appendix A33. Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation, B.C. Reg. 22/96
- Appendix A34. Timber Marking and Transportation Regulation, B.C. Reg. 253/97
- Appendix A35. Tree Farm Licence Area-Based Allowable Annual Cut Trial Program Regulation, B.C. Reg. 482/2004
- Appendix A36. Tree Farm Licence Management Plan Regulation, B.C. Reg. 280/2009
- Appendix A37. Waste Assessment Regulation, B.C. Reg. 262/2019
- Appendix A38. Woodlot Licence Regulation, B.C. Reg. 68/2006, Sch. A

Annendices (Continued)

Volume 2

rippendices (e	
Appendix B. Re	egulations under the Forest and Range Practices Act
Appendix B1.	Administrative Orders and Remedies Regulation, B.C. Reg. 101/2005
Appendix B2.	Administrative Review and Appeal Procedure Regulation, B.C. Reg. 12/2004
Appendix B3.	Forest Planning and Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 14/2004
Appendix B4.	Forest Practices Board Regulation, B.C. Reg. 15/2004
Appendix B5.	Forest Recreation Regulation, B.C. Reg. 16/2004
Appendix B6.	Forest Service Road Use Regulation, B.C. Reg. 70/2004
Appendix B7.	Government Actions Regulation, B.C. Reg. 582/2004
Appendix B8.	Invasive Plants Regulation, B.C. Reg. 18/2004
Appendix B9.	Range Planning and Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 19/2004
Appendix B10.	Security for Forest and Range Practice Liabilities Regulation, B.C. Reg. 20/2004
4 11 7544	

Appendix B11. Special Tree Protection Regulation, B.C. Reg. 229/2020

Appendix B12. Tree Seeds and Services Regulation, B.C. Reg. 138/2019

Appendix B13. Woodlot Licence Planning and Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 21/2004

Appendix C. Regulations under the Forest Practices Code of British Columbia Act

Appendix C1. Fort St. John Pilot Project Regulation, B.C. Reg. 278/2001

Appendix C2. Provincial Forest Use Regulation, B.C. Reg. 176/95

Appendix C3. Stillwater Pilot Project Regulation, B.C. Reg. 96/2001

Appendix D. Regulations under the Wildfire Act

Appendix D1. Wildfire Regulation, B.C. Reg. 38/2005

Appendix E. Regulations under the Forestry Service Providers Protection Act

Appendix E1. Forestry Service Providers Compensation Fund Regulation, B.C. Reg. 64/2012

Appendix F. Glossary

Appendix TC. Tables of Concordance

Appendix WP. Words and Phrases

Table of Cases

Index

Table of Contents

Volume 1

INTRODUCTION

- § I:1 Overview
- § I:2 Table of Effective Dates of Acts and Amendments

FOREST PRACTICES CODE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA ACT

§ FC:1 Summary of the Forest Practices Code of British Columbia

PART 2 STRATEGIC PLANNING, OBJECTIVES AND STANDARDS

- 2 Provincial forest and a wilderness area
 - § FC-2:1 Commentary

PART 6 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

DIVISION 4 ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND APPEALS

130.1 Part 6 of the Forest and Range Practices Act applies

PART 10 REGULATIONS

- § FC-P10:1 Commentary
- 198 Power to make regulations
- 200 Fees
- 205 Provincial forest
 - § FC-205:1 Commentary

FOREST AND RANGE PRACTICES ACT

§ FRPA:1 Summary of the Forest and Range Practices Act

PART 1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

- 1 Definitions
 - § FRPA-1:1 Commentary
- 2 Interpretation
- 2.1 Application of Act to first nations woodland licences
 - § FRPA-2.1:1 Commentary

PART 2 FOREST STEWARDSHIP PLAN, SITE PLAN AND WOODLOT LICENCE PLAN

DIVISION 1 FOREST STEWARDSHIP PLAN

- 3 Forest stewardship plan required
 - § FRPA-3:1 Commentary
- 4 Exemption from forest stewardship plans
 - § FRPA-4:1 Commentary
- 5 Content of forest stewardship plan
 - § FRPA-5:1 Commentary
- 6 Term of forest stewardship plan
 - § FRPA-6:1 Commentary
- 7 Limited protection for forest development units
 - § FRPA-7:1 Commentary
- 8 Mandatory amendments
 - § FRPA-8:1 Commentary
- 9 Proportional objectives
 - § FRPA-9:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 SITE PLANS

- 10 Site plans for cutblocks and roads
 - § FRPA-10:1 Commentary
- 11 Site plan available to public
 - § FRPA-11:1 Commentary

DIVISION 3 WOODLOT LICENCE PLAN

- 12 Woodlot licence plan required
 - § FRPA-12:1 Commentary
- 13 Content of woodlot licence plan
 - § FRPA-13:1 Commentary
- 14 Term of woodlot licence plan
 - § FRPA-14:1 Commentary
- 15 Amendments to a woodlot licence plan
 - § FRPA-15:1 Commentary

DIVISION 4 GENERAL

- Approval of forest stewardship plan, woodlot licence plan or amendment
 - § FRPA-16:1 Commentary
- 17 Approval in emergency cases
 - § FRPA-17:1 Commentary
- 18 Review and comment
 - § FRPA-18:1 Commentary
- 19 Protection for cutting and road permits
 - § FRPA-19:1 Commentary
- 20 Minor amendments to forest stewardship and woodlot licence plans
 - § FRPA-20:1 Commentary
- 20.1 Amendments to expired plans for stocking standards
 - § FRPA-20.1:1 Commentary

PART 3 FOREST PRACTICES

DIVISION 1 GENERAL

- 21 Compliance with plans
 - § FRPA-21:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 ROADS

- 21.1
- 22 Application
 - § FRPA-22:1 Commentary
- 22.1 Use of forest service roads for timber harvesting, silviculture or natural resource development purposes
 - § FRPA-22.1:1 Commentary
- 22.11 Use of forest resource roads for timber harvesting, silviculture or natural resource development purposes
- 22.12 Notice of use of forest service road or road authorized under permit or licence
- 22.2 Non-industrial use of a road
 - § FRPA-22.2:1 Commentary
- 22.3 No payment for use of road except as provided
 - § FRPA-22.3:1 Commentary
- 23 [Repealed. 2021, c. 37, s. 55.]
- 23.1 Significant road work in relation to forest service roads
- 23.2 Order to deactivate road
- 23.3 Exemption from deactivating road
- 24. Section 42 of Transportation Act does not apply
 - § FRPA-24:1 Commentary

DIVISION 3 FOREST HEALTH

- 25 Sanitation exemption
- 26 Control of insects, diseases, animals or abiotic factors
 - § FRPA-26:1 Commentary
- 27 Forest health emergency
 - § FRPA-27:1 Commentary

DIVISION 4 SILVICULTURE AND GENE RESOURCES

- 28 Property in trees
- 29 Free growing stands
 - § FRPA-29:1 Commentary
- 29.1 Transfer of obligation to establish a free growing stand
 - § FRPA-29.1:1 Commentary
- 30 Free growing stands for non-replaceable licences
 - § FRPA-30:1 Commentary
- 31 Seed
 - § FRPA-31:1 Commentary

PART 4 RANGE

DIVISION 1 RANGE USE PLAN AND RANGE STEWARDSHIP PLAN

- 32 Range use plan and range stewardship plan required
 - § FRPA-32:1 Commentary
- 33 Content of range use plan for grazing
 - § FRPA-33:1 Commentary
- 34 Content of a range use plan for hav cutting
- 35 Content of range stewardship plan
 - § FRPA-35:1 Commentary
- 36 Term of range use plan and range stewardship plan
 - § FRPA-36:1 Commentary
- 37 Approval of a range use plan or range stewardship plan
 - § FRPA-37:1 Commentary
- 38 Mandatory amendments
 - § FRPA-38:1 Commentary
- 39 Cumulative impacts require plan amendment
- 40 Minor changes to range use plan or range stewardship plan
 - § FRPA-40:1 Commentary
- 41 Review and comment
 - § FRPA-41:1 Commentary
- 42 Proportional objectives

DIVISION 2 GRAZING SCHEDULE

- 43 Grazing schedule required
 - § FRPA-43:1 Commentary
- 44 Grazing schedule available to public
 - § FRPA-44:1 Commentary

DIVISION 3 GENERAL

- 45 General
 - § FRPA-45:1 Commentary

PART 5 PROTECTION OF RESOURCES

DIVISION 1 GENERAL

- 46 Protection of the environment
 - § FRPA-46:1 Commentary
- 47 Invasive plants
 - § FRPA-47:1 Commentary
- 48 Natural range barriers
 - § FRPA-48:1 Commentary
- 49 Exemption for fighting out of control fire
- 50 Unauthorized range activities
 - § FRPA-50:1 Commentary

- 51 Range developments
 - § FRPA-51:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 UNAUTHORIZED TIMBER HARVESTING, TRESPASS AND TREE SPIKING

- 52 Unauthorized timber harvesting
 - § FRPA-52:1 Commentary
- 52.1 Authorization for silviculture, stand tending, forest health or another purpose
 - § FRPA-52.1:1 Commentary
- 53 Private land adjacent to Crown land
 - § FRPA-53:1 Commentary
- 54 Unauthorized construction and occupation
 - § FRPA-54:1 Commentary
- 55 Tree spiking prohibited
 - § FRPA-55:1 Commentary

DIVISION 3 RECREATION

- 56 Interpretive forest sites, recreation sites and recreation trails
- 57 Unauthorized trail or recreation facility construction
 - § FRPA-57:1 Commentary
- 58 Protection of recreation and range resources on Crown land
 - § FRPA-58:1 Commentary

PART 6 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

- § FRPA-P6:1 Commentary
- 58.1 Definition for Part 6
- 58.2 Applicability of certain provisions of Part 6 of this Act for the Forest Practices Code of British Columbia Act

DIVISION 1 INSPECTING, STOPPING AND SEIZING

- 59 Entry and inspection
 - § FRPA-59:1 Commentary
- 60 Inspection of vehicle or vessel carrying forest or range products
- 61 Delivery of records
 - § FRPA-61:1 Commentary
- 62 Obligation of an official
- 63 Obligation of person inspected
 - § FRPA-63:1 Commentary
- 64 Warrant to search and seize evidence
- 65 Peace officers may accompany
- 66 Stop work order
 - § FRPA-66:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 SEIZURE

- 67 Seizure of timber, chattels, hay, livestock, etc.
 - § FRPA-67:1 Commentary
- 68 Forfeiture of livestock

- 69 Common provisions for seizure and forfeiture
- 70 No interference with notice
 - § FRPA-70:1 Commentary

DIVISION 3 ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES

- 71 Administrative penalties
 - § FRPA-71:1 Commentary
 - § FRPA-71:2 Administrative Penalty Considerations Under FRPA
- 72 Defences in relation to administrative proceedings
 - § FRPA-72:1 Commentary
- 73 Penalty revenue to be paid into special account
- 74 Remediation orders
 - § FRPA-74:1 Commentary
- 75 Limitation period
 - § FRPA-75:1 Commentary
- Administrative penalty due date [Repealed. 2004, c. 36, s. 95]
- 76.1 Extension of due date for administrative penalties and other charges, on review or appeal
- 77 Power of intervention: general
 - § FRPA-77:1 Commentary
- 77.1 Power of intervention: first nations
 - § FRPA-77.1:1 Commentary

DIVISION 4 CORRECTIONS, REVIEWS AND APPEALS

- § FRPA-P6D4:1 Commentary
- 78 Determinations stayed until proceedings concluded
 - § FRPA-78:1 Commentary
- 79 Correction or clarification of a determination
- 80 Review of a determination
 - § FRPA-80:1 Commentary
- 81 Board may require review of a determination
- 82 Appeal to the commission by a person who is the subject of a determination
 - § FRPA-82:1 Commentary
- Appeal to the commission by the board
 - § FRPA-83:1 Commentary
- 83.1 Application of Administrative Tribunals Act to appeals under this Act
 - § FRPA-83.1:1 Commentary
- 84 Powers of the commission
 - § FRPA-84:1 Commentary
- 85 Requirement to publish

DIVISION 5 OFFENCES AND COURT ORDERS

- 86 Limitation period
- 87 Fines
- 88 Remedies preserved
- 89 Limitation on proceedings
- 90 Order for compliance

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 91 Court order to comply
- 92 Restitution
- 93 Continuing offence
- 94 Prosecution for unauthorized timber cutting
- 95 Prosecution for unauthorized cutting or storage of hay
- 96 Prosecution for unauthorized trail or recreational facility construction
- 97 Interference, non-compliance and misleading
 - § FRPA-97:1 Commentary
- 98 Court orders
- 99 Penalty for monetary benefit
- 100 Employer liability
 - § FRPA-100:1 Commentary
- 101 Defences to a prosecution
 - § FRPA-101:1 Commentary
- 102 Offence by directors and officers
 - § FRPA-102:1 Commentary
- 103 Section 5 Offence Act

PART 7 GENERAL

DIVISION 1 LIABILITY AND PRIVILEGE

- Liability of government [Repealed. 2003, c. 55, s. 45]
- 105 Protection against libel and slander
- 106 Liability of persons to government
- 106.1 Definition for sections 107 and 108
- Limitation on liability of persons to government
 - § FRPA-107:1 Commentary
- 108 Government may fund extra expense or waive obligation
 - § FRPA-108:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 MISCELLANEOUS

- 109 Confidentiality and disclosure to government
- How notice may be given
 - § FRPA-110:1 Commentary
- 110.1 Complete and accurate information
- 111 Orders
- 112 Power to impose conditions
 - § FRPA-112:1 Commentary
- 113 Extension of time
- 114 Evidence of designation
- 115 Powers cumulative
- 116 Amendment or remedial action does not affect offences or penalties
- Right of proceeding [Repealed. 2004, c. 31, s. 93]
- 118 Power to enter into agreements
- 119 Whistle-blower protection
 - § FRPA-119:1 Commentary
- 120 Costs of performing obligations

DIVISION 3 DELEGATION

- 120.1 Delegation power
- 120.2 Subdelegation
- 120.3 Evidence of delegation

PART 8 FOREST PRACTICES BOARD

DIVISION 1 DEFINITION

121 Definition of "party"

DIVISION 2 COMPLAINTS AND AUDITS

- 122 Audits and special investigations
 - § FRPA-122:1 Commentary
- 123 Complaints from public
 - § FRPA-123:1 Commentary
- 124 Powers of investigation
- 125 Power to obtain information
- 125.1 Contempt proceeding for uncooperative witness or other person
- 125.2 Immunity protection for board and members
- 126 Power to obtain information limited
- 127 Board must notify and consult party
- 128 Opportunity to make representations
- 129 Evidence not admissible
- 130 Person may be reimbursed for expenses

DIVISION 3 REMEDIES

- 131 Report and recommendations
 - § FRPA-131:1 Commentary
- 132 Party to notify board of steps taken
- 133 Report of board if no suitable action taken
- 134 Complainant to be informed
- 135 Special reports

DIVISION 4 GENERAL

- 136 Forest Practices Board continued
 - § FRPA-136:1 Commentary
- 137 Panels of the Board
- 138 Board staff
- 139 No hearing as of right
- 140 Delegation of powers

PART 8.1 FOREST APPEALS COMMISSION

- § FRPA-P8.1:1 Commentary
- 140.1 Forest Appeals Commission continued
 - § FRPA-140.1:1 Commentary
- 140.2 Application of Administrative Tribunals Act
 - § FRPA-140.2:1 Commentary

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 140.3 Mandate of commission
- 140.4 Time for appeal by board
- 140.5 Persons and bodies entitled to notice and to be parties to appeal
- 140.6 Appeal by new hearing
- 140.7 Appeal to court
 - § FRPA-140.7:1 Commentary

PART 9 REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS

- 141 Power to make regulations
- 142 Forms
- 143 Fees or charges
- 144 Security
 - § FRPA-144:1 Commentary
- 145 Recovery of money
- 146 Exemptions
 - § FRPA-146:1 Commentary
- 147 Criteria for exercise of discretionary powers
- 148 Interpretive forest sites, recreation sites and recreation trails
- Objectives set by government
- 149.1 Ungulate winter range, wildlife habitat areas and general wildlife measures
- 150 Community watersheds
- 150.1 Watersheds with significant downstream fisheries values and significant watershed sensitivity
- 150.2 Lakeshore management zones and objectives
- 150.3 Scenic areas and visual quality objectives
- 150.4 Consistency among objectives
- 150.5 Streams, wetlands and lakes
- 151 Plans and practices
- Review and comment and sharing with first nations [Repealed. 2003, c. 55, s. 58]
- 153 Practices and planning—community forest agreements, woodlot licences
- 154 Forest and range resources
- Roads and rights of way
- 156 Timber harvesting practices and methods
- 157 Silvicultural systems and silviculture treatments
- 158 Gene resources
- 159 Terrain stability and soil disturbance
- 160 Cutblocks
- 161 Use of Crown range and range developments
- 162 Notification requirements
- 163 Administrative remedies
- 164 Intervention, remediation and consultation
- 165 Reconsideration
- 166 Appeals and the commission
- 167 Forest Practices Board
- 168 Botanical forest products
- 169 Chief forester standards for forest practices
- 170 Forest Practices Advisory Council

PART 10 PILOT PROJECTS FOR FOREST PRACTICES OR RANGE PRACTICES

- 171 Public review and comment required before a pilot project may proceed
 - § FRPA-171:1 Commentary
- 172 Tests for making a pilot project regulation
- 173 Regulation making powers respecting pilot projects
 - § FRPA-173:1 Commentary
- 174 Application
- 175 Annual reports
 - § FRPA-175:1 Commentary
- 176 Commencement [Repealed. 2003, c. 55, s. 65]

PART 11 TRANSITIONAL

DIVISION 1 GENERAL

- 177 Definitions and interpretation
 - § FRPA-177:1 Commentary
- 177.1 Applicability of certain provisions of Part 6 of this Act for the Code
- 178 Implementation regulations [Repealed. B.C. Reg. 361/2006]
- 179 Immediate application

DIVISION 2 GRANDPARENTING DESIGNATIONS, OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES

- 180 Grandparenting specified designations
- 181 Grandparenting objectives
- 182 General wildlife measures

DIVISION 3 GRANDPARENTING PERMITS

- 183 Cutting permits
- 184 Road permits
- 185 Road use permits

DIVISION 4 TRANSITION FOR FOREST OPERATIONAL PLANS AND PRACTICES

- 186 Application
- 187 Grandparenting forest development plans
- 188 Preparing a forest development plan during the transition period
- 189 Site level planning for cutblocks before the approval of a forest stewardship plan
- 190 Site plans for roads before the approval of a forest stewardship plan
- 191 Operations in cutblocks begun under the Code
- 192 Operations in cutblocks begun after the effective date and before the approval of a forest stewardship plan
- 193 Road operations begun under the Code
- 194 Road operations begun on or after the effective date and before the approval of a forest stewardship plan
- 195 Applying for cutting permits and road permits before a forest stewardship plan is approved

- 196 Protection of cutblocks and roads from a forest development plan into a forest stewardship plan
- 197 Effect of approval of a forest stewardship plan

DIVISION 5 TRANSITION FOR WOODLOT LICENCES

- 198 Performance standard for existing obligations
- 199 Grandparenting forest development plans
- 200 Preparing a forest development plan during the transition period
- 201 Areas under a forest development plan
- 202 Effect of approval of a woodlot licence plan

DIVISION 6 TRANSITION FOR LICENCES TO CUT

- 203 Licences to cut: general
- 204 Licences to cut that provide for cutting permits

DIVISION 7 RANGE TRANSITION

- 205 Grandparenting range use plans
- 206 Requirements for areas under a grandparented range use plan
- 207 Effect of approval of a range use plan or range stewardship plan under section 37

DIVISION 8 PILOT PROJECT TRANSITION

- 208 Definitions
- 209 Pilot projects regulations continued
- 210 Proposed pilot projects
- 211 Pilot project regulation may be transferred from Code

DIVISION 9 TRANSFER OF CODE OBLIGATIONS

- 212 Application
- 213 Obligations transferred from the Code

DIVISION 10 FOREST PRACTICES BOARD TRANSITION

- 214 Mandate of board re: transition
- 215 Mandate of board re: protection

DIVISION 11 NISGA'A FINAL AGREEMENT TRANSITION

- 216 Nisga'a Final Agreement
- 217 Commencement

FOREST ACT

§ FA:1 Summary of the Forest Act

PART 1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

- § FA:P1:1 Commentary
- 1 Definitions and interpretation
 - § FA-1:1 Commentary
- 1.1 Delegation

1.2 Delegation of chief forester's powers and duties

PART 2 CLASSIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT OF FORESTS AND FOREST LAND AND REGULATION OF CUTTING RATES

- § FA-P2:1 Commentary
- 2 Inventory of land and forests [Repealed. 2002, c. 45, s. 2]
- 3 Assessment of potential [Repealed. 2002, c. 45, s. 2]
- 4 Forest land [*Repealed*. 2002, c. 45, s. 2]
- 5 Provincial forests
 - § FA-5:1 Commentary
- 6 Wilderness areas
- 7 Timber supply areas
- 8 Allowable annual cut
- 8.1 Adjusting the allowable annual cut
 - § FA-8.1:1 Commentary
- 9 Plans, studies, analyses and information
 - § FA-9:1 Commentary
- 10 Apportioning cut

PART 3 DISPOSITION OF TIMBER BY THE GOVERNMENT

DIVISION 1 FORMS OF RIGHTS TO CROWN TIMBER

- § FA-P3D1:1 Commentary
- § FA-P3D1:2 British Columbia Forest Tenures
- § FA-P3D1:3 Aboriginal Rights, Title, Consultation and Accommodation
- 11 Rights to Crown timber
- 12 Form of agreements
 - § FA-12:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 FOREST LICENCES

- 13 Applications
 - § FA-13:1 Commentary
- 13.1 Direct award of forest licence to produce bioenergy
- 13.2 Designation of bioenergy supply contracts and specification of allowable annual cut
- 14 Content of forest licence
 - § FA-14:1 Commentary
- 14.1 Mountain pine beetle salvage area
 - § FA-14.1:1 Commentary
- 14.2 Supplemental forest licence
- 15 Replacement
 - § FA-15:1 Commentary
- 15.1 Transition for forest licence replacement
- 16 Surrender of tree farm licence
- 17 Surrender of timber sale licences [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 9]
- 18 Transfer to other timber supply area
- 19 Consolidation and subdivision of forest licences

DIVISION 3 TIMBER SALE LICENCES

- 20 Applications
 - § FA-20:1 Commentary
- 21 Applications to minister [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 12]
- 22 Content of timber sale licence
 - § FA-22:1 Commentary
- 22.1 Exemption from requirement to pay bonus offer
- 22.2 BCTS disposition agreements
- 22.3 Volume harvested under BCTS licence deemed to be harvested under non-BCTS licence for cut control purposes
- 22.4 Payment for timber respecting non-BCTS licence with reduction
- No advertising required [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 14]
- Designated applicants [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 14]
 - § FA-24:1 Commentary

DIVISION 3.1 CONVERSION OF TIMBER SALE LICENCES

- 24.1 Interpretation
- 24.2 Conversion of timber sale licence to forest licence
 - § FA-24.2:1 Commentary
- 24.3 Addition of timber sale licence allowable annual cut to forest licence
 - § FA-24.3:1 Commentary
- 24.4 Addition of timber sale licence allowable annual cut to forest licence on application
 - § FA-24.4:1 Commentary
- 24.5 Addition of timber sale licence to woodlot licence
 - § FA-24.5:1 Commentary
- 24.6 Surrender of timber sale licence for forest licence
 - § FA-24.6:1 Commentary
- 24.7 Surrender of timber sale licence for woodlot licence
 - § FA-24.7:1 Commentary
- 24.8 Surrender of timber sale licence for forestry licence to cut
 - § FA-24.8:1 Commentary
- 24.9 Conversion of timber sale licence to forestry licence to cut
 - § FA-24.9:1 Commentary
- 24.91 No compensation

DIVISION 4 FOREST LICENCE AREA RESTRICTION

- 25 Permanent transfer to adjacent timber supply area
- 26 Minister may impose area restrictions

DIVISION 5 TIMBER LICENCES

- 27 Rights in tree farm licences
- 28 Rights not in tree farm licence
 - § FA-28:1 Commentary
- 29 One timber licence
- 29.1 Consolidation of timber licences
- 30 Content of timber licence
 - § FA-30:1 Commentary

- 31 Extension of term of timber licence
- 32 Non-timber use

DIVISION 6 TREE FARM LICENCES

- 33 Applications
 - § FA-33:1 Commentary
- 34 Surrender of forest and timber sale licences [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 21]
- 35 Content of tree farm licence
 - § FA-35:1 Commentary
- 35.1 Inventories
- 35.2 Management plan for tree farm licence
 - § FA-35.2:1 Commentary
- 36 Replacement
 - § FA-36:1 Commentary
- 36.1 Transition for tree farm licence replacement
- 37 Private tenure
- 38 Private land
- 39 Consolidation and subdivision
- 39.1 Change in boundary or area
 - § FA-39.1:1 Commentary

DIVISION 7 PULPWOOD AGREEMENTS

- 40 Application [*Repealed*. 2003, c. 31, s. 27]
- 41 Content of pulpwood agreement
 - § FA-41:1 Commentary
- 42 Replacement [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 29]
- 43 Consolidation and subdivision of pulpwood agreements

DIVISION 7.1 COMMUNITY FOREST AGREEMENTS

- 43.1 Definitions and interpretation [Repealed. 2009, c. 8, s. 5]
- 43.2 Applications for probationary community forest agreements
 - § FA-43.2:1 Commentary
- 43.3 Content of community forest agreement
 - § FA-43.3:1 Commentary
- 43.4 Replacement of probationary and long-term community forest agreements
 - § FA-43.4:1 Commentary
- 43.41 Transition for community forest pilot agreements and probationary community forest agreements
- 43.5 Community forest pilot agreement [Repealed. 2009, c. 8, s. 11]
- 43.51 Direct award of probationary community forest agreement
 - § FA-43.51:1 Commentary
- 43.52 Change in area or boundary
 - § FA-43.52:1 Commentary
- 43.53 Transition for community forest agreement allowable annual cut

DIVISION 7.11 FIRST NATIONS WOODLAND LICENCES

- 43.54 Award of first nations woodland licence
- 43.55 Content of first nations woodland licence
- 43.56 Replacement of first nations woodland licences
- 43.57 Change in area or boundary

DIVISION 7.2 [REPEALED. 2021, C. 38, S. 26]

43.6 to 43.8 [Repealed. 2021, c. 38, s. 26]

DIVISION 8 WOODLOT LICENCES

- 44 Applications
 - § FA-44:1 Commentary
- 45 Content of woodlot licence
 - § FA-45:1 Commentary
- 45.1 Transition for woodlot licence allowable annual cut
- 46 Replacement
 - § FA-46:1 Commentary
- 46.1 Timber processing facility [Repealed. 2007, c. 18, s. 22]
- 46.2 Consolidation of woodlot licences
- Change in area or boundary [Repealed by s. 47(2), effective July 1, 1998]
- 47.1 Change in area or boundary
 - § FA-47.1:1 Commentary
- 47.2 Woodlot licence term—transition [Repealed by s. 47.2(4), effective July 1, 2009]

DIVISION 8.1 DIRECT AWARDS

- 47.3 Direct award of specified licences
 - § FA-47.3:1 Commentary

DIVISION 8.2 LICENCES TO CUT

- 47.4 Licence to cut for persons occupying land or for oil and gas purposes
 - § FA-47.4:1 Commentary
- 47.5 Content of occupant and master licences to cut
- 47.6 Forestry licence to cut
 - § FA-47.6:1 Commentary
- 47.7 Content of forestry licence to cut
 - § FA-47.7:1 Commentary
- 47.71 Applications for fibre supply licence to cut
 - § FA-47.71:1 Commentary
- 47.72 Content of a fibre supply licence to cut
- 47.73 Volume deemed to be harvested under licence for cut control purposes

DIVISION 8.3 DISPOSITION OF TIMBER ACQUIRED UNDER FORESTRY REVITALIZATION ACT OR SUBJECT TO WASTE ASSESSMENT

- 47.8 Disposition of timber in a tree farm licence
- 47.9 Disposition of timber not harvested or removed under an agreement

DIVISION 9 FREE USE PERMITS FOR FIRST NATIONS AND OTHERS

- 48 Free use permit
 - § FA-48:1 Commentary
- 49 Issuance and content of free use permit
 - § FA-49:1 Commentary
- 49.1 Free use permit in area subject to area-based licence

DIVISION 9.1 CHRISTMAS TREE PERMITS AND GOVERNMENT USE

- 50 Christmas tree permit
 - § FA-50:1 Commentary
- 51 Licence to cut [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 37]
- 52 Use by government employees and agents
 - § FA-52:1 Commentary

PART 4 GENERAL TENURE PROVISIONS

§ FA-P4:1 Commentary

DIVISION 1 INTERPRETATION

- 53 Interpretation and application
- 53.1 Holders of agreements
- 53.2 Corporate relations
 - § FA-53.2:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 DISPOSITIONS OF AGREEMENTS

§	FA-P4D2:1Commentary
---	---------------------

54	П	ransfer	of	agreements	permitted
----	---	---------	----	------------	-----------

- 54.01 Conditions attached to ministerial approval of dispositions
- 54.02 Mandatory refusal of dispositions
- 54.1 [Repealed. 2019, c. 31, s. 8]
- 54.2 Confirmation of completion of disposition and effect of

completion

- 54.3 Dispositions exempt from certain requirements
 - § FA-54.3:1 Commentary
- 54.4 Transfer of certain agreements not permitted
 - § FA-54.4:1 Commentary
- 54.5 [Repealed. 2019, c. 31, s. 12.]
- 54.6 Effect of disposition on obligations
 - § FA-54.6:1 Commentary
- 54.61 Suspension of rights if condition of disposition not met

DIVISION 2.1 CORPORATE CHANGES OF CONTROL AND AMALGAMATIONS

- 54.62 Interpretation
- 54.63 Notice of change of control or amalgamation
- 54.64 Review of change of control or amalgamation

- 54.65 Circumstances in which minister may take administrative action
- 54.66 Administrative actions following change of control or amalgamation
- 54.67 Proposal by corporation following administrative action
- 54.68 Exempt changes of control
- 54.69 Subsequent suspension or cancellation of rights

DIVISION 2.2 DISPOSITIONS OF PRIVATE LANDS SUBJECT TO AGREEMENTS AND EXCHANGES OF RIGHTS

- 54.7 Disposition or withdrawal of private land subject to tree farm licence or woodlot licence
- 54.8 Transition [Repealed. 2019, c. 31, s. 18.]
- 55 Cancellation for failure to obtain consent [Repealed. 2003, c. 30, s. 9]
- Reduction in allowable annual cut [Repealed. 2003, c. 30, s. 9]
- 56.1 Disposition of allowable annual cut reduction
- 57 Exchanges of rights

DIVISION 3 EXTENSIONS, INCREASES, DELETIONS AND REDUCTIONS

- 58 [Repealed. 2021, c. 38, s. 32.]
- 58.1 Extension of timber sale licences and cutting permits
- 58.2 [Repealed. 2021, c. 37, s. 9.]
- 58.201 Transition for cutting permits in effect on November 4, 2003
- 58.21 Postponement of operation of cutting permits
 - § FA-58.21:1 Commentary
- 58.3 Surrender of BC timber sales agreement
 - § FA-58.3:1 Commentary
- 59 Increase of allowable annual cut
- 59.1 Innovative forestry practices
 - § FA-59.1:1 Commentary
- 60 Deletions, not affecting allowable annual cut, of Crown land from tree farm licences
 - § FA-60:1 Commentary
- 60.01 Other deletions, not affecting allowable annual cut, of Crown land
- 60.1 Definitions for sections 60.2 to 60.91
- 60.2 Other deletions of Crown land—tree farm licences
- 60.3 Other deletions of Crown land—community forest agreements, first nations woodland licences, woodlot licences and timber licences
- 60.4 Reductions in allowable annual cut under forest licences and timber sale licences
- Notice of an order under sections 60, 60.01 or 60.2 to 60.4
- 60.501 Deletions under the Park Act
- 60.51 Deemed amendment to affected agreements
- 60.6 Compensation in respect of tree farm licence areas
- 60.7 Compensation in respect of community forest agreement and woodlot licence areas
- 60.8 Compensation in respect of timber licences
- 60.9 Compensation in respect of forest licences or timber sale licences
- 60.91 Access purpose deletions or reductions unrelated to those for another purpose

60.92	Compensation for improvements
60.93	Commercial Arbitration Act applies
60.94	Compensation may take form of agreement
60.95	Set-off for benefits previously received
61	Temporary reductions
62	Return of surrendered harvesting rights
62.1	Definitions for sections 63 to 63.05
63.	Reduction among licences in timber supply area
63	Proportionate reduction
	A-63:1 Commentary
63.01	Determining groups of licences
63.02	Distributing timber supply area reductions among groups of licences and ungrouped licences
63.03	Distributing remaining part of timber supply area reduction among groups of licences and ungrouped licences
63.04	Distributing combined allowable annual cut reductions among licences in groups of licences
63.05	Distributing remaining part of combined allowable annual cut reduction among licences in groups of licences
63.1	Proportionate reduction if section 59.1 applies
63.2	Date of increase or reduction in allowable annual cut and prorating
64	Cut control [<i>Repealed</i> . 2003, c. 30, s. 8]
65	[Repealed. 2003, c. 30, s. 8]
66	[Repealed. 2003, c. 30, s. 8]
67	Carry forward
68	Increase: disposition or deletion
69	Reduction by chief forester of allowable annual cut
70	Reductions in allowable annual cut
71	Reduction of cut for mill closure [Repealed. 2003, c. 30, s. 2]
72 7 2	Removal of dead or damaged timber
73	Removal of dead or damaged timber from a timber supply area
74	Timber cruise
75	Compatible use
DIVIS	ION 3.01 ALLOWABLE ANNUAL CUT PARTITION
§ FA	A-P4D3.01:1 Commentary
75.01	Definitions
	A-75.01:1 Commentary
75.02	Partition order
	A-75.02:1 Commentary
75.03	Increase or waiver of harvested volume limit in order
§ FA	A-75.03:1 Commentary
	Consolidation, subdivision or replacement of licences subject to an order
	Penalty for non-compliance with minister's order
	A-75.05:1 Commentary
	Relief from penalty
	Regulation making powers
\$ F/	A-75.07:1 Commentary

DIVISION 3.1 CUT CONTROL

- § FA-P4D3.1:1 Commentary
- 75.1 Interpretation
 - § FA-75.1:1 Commentary
- 75.11 Exception for licences that define "volume of timber harvested"
- 75.12 Bonus bid equalization payment for attributed timber volumes
- 75.2 Limit on total cut for licences with a term of 5 years or less
 - § FA-75.2:1 Commentary
- 75.21 Limit on total cut for forestry licence to cut and community salvage licence
 - § FA-75.21:1 Commentary
- 75.22 Cut control period for short term licences that are extended
- 75.3 Reconciliation of cut control for short term licences
- 75.4 Cut control period for major licences
- 75.41 Cut control limit for major licences
- 75.5 Cut control period for other licences
- 75.51 Cut control limit for other licences
- 75.6 Reconciliation of cut control for major and other licences
- 75.61 Reconciliation of cut control for woodlot licences
- 75.7 Carry forward of excess harvest volume
- 75.8 No carry forward of unharvested volume
 - § FA-75.8:1 Commentary
- 75.9 Exemption from cut control limits
- 75.91 Penalty for exceeding cut control limits
 - § FA-75.91:1 Commentary
- 75.92 Relief
- 75.93 Transitional—cut control
- 75.94 Transitional—carry forward
- 75.95 Transitional—volume of timber harvested
- 75.96 Transitional—woodlot licence cut control and carry forward

DIVISION 4 SUSPENSION AND CANCELLATION

- 76 Suspension of rights
 - § FA-76:1 Commentary
- 77 Cancellation
 - § FA-77:1 Commentary
- 78 BC timber sales—disqualification, suspension and cancellation
 - § FA-78:1 Commentary
- 78.1 BC timber sales—district manager powers of suspension and cancellation
 - § FA-78.1:1 Commentary
- 79 Continuing liability
 - § FA-79:1 Commentary

DIVISION 4.1 MISCELLANEOUS

- 79.1 Residual fibre orders
- When compensation is not payable
 - § FA-80:1 Commentary

- 80.01 Limit on compensation
- 80.1 Relief from liability for appurtenancy and processing requirements
 - § FA-80.1:1 Commentary
- 80.2 Forestry Revitalization Act

DIVISION 5 ELIGIBILITY OF APPLICANTS

- 81 Eligibility
 - § FA-81:1 Commentary
- 81.1 Refusal of cutting permit or road permit

PART 5 TIMBER MARKING

- § FA-P5:1 Commentary
- 82 Timber marking: interpretation
- 83 Timber mark duration
- 84 Timber marks
 - § FA-84:1 Commentary
- 85 Applications
 - § FA-85:1 Commentary
- 86 Scaled timber brands
 - § FA-86:1 Commentary
- 87 Applications
 - § FA-87:1 Commentary
- 88 Marine log brand
- 89 Marking with marine log brand
 - § FA-89:1 Commentary
- 90 Transfer
 - § FA-90:1 Commentary
- 91 Evidence
- 92 Registers

PART 6 TIMBER SCALING

- § FA-P6:1 Commentary
- 93 Timber scaling: interpretation
- 93.1 Misrepresentation prohibited
 - § FA-93.1:1 Commentary
- 94 Timber to be scaled
 - § FA-94:1 Commentary
- 94.1 Scaling of special forest products
- 95 Scale site authorization
 - § FA-95:1 Commentary
- 96 Metric scale
 - § FA-96:1 Commentary
- 97 Scale return
 - § FA-97:1 Commentary
- 98 Scaling charges, costs and expenses
 - § FA-98:1 Commentary
- 99 Second scale
 - § FA-99:1 Commentary

- 100 Scaling
 - § FA-100:1 Commentary
- 101 Re-examination
- 102 Suspension and cancellation

PART 6.1 —FOREST RESOURCE INVENTORIES

- 102.1 Definitions for Part 6.1
- 102.2 Requirement to prepare and maintain forest resource inventories
- 102.3 Time periods within which forest resource inventories must be prepared
- 102.4 Content of forest resource inventory
- 102.5 Maintenance of forest resource inventory
- 102.6 Requirement to keep records respecting forest resource inventory
- 102.7 Requirement to submit forest resource inventory to chief forester
- 102.8 Requirement to review forest resource inventory in special circumstances
- 102.9 Verification of information in forest resource inventory

PART 7 PAYMENTS TO THE GOVERNMENT

- § FA-P7:1 Commentary
- 103 Amount of stumpage
 - § FA-103:1 Commentary
- 103.1 Assessments for merchantable Crown timber that is not cut and removed
 - § FA-103.1:1 Commentary
- Stumpage rate for timber licence and licence to cut
- 105 Stumpage rate determined
 - § FA-105:1 Commentary
- 105.1 Complete and accurate information
 - § FA-105.1:1 Commentary
- 105.2 Redetermination of stumpage rate at direction of ministe
 - § FA-105.2:1 Commentary
- 105.3 Small scale salvage costs portion to be paid into special account
- 106 Cruise instead of scale
- More than one rate
- Rate on unscaled or incorrectly scaled timber
 - § FA-108:1 Commentary
- 109 BC Timber Sales Account
- 110 Credit to stumpage [*Repealed*. 2003, c. 31, s. 60]
- 111 Annual rent
 - § FA-111:1 Commentary
- 112 Calculation of annual rent
 - § FA-112:1 Commentary
- 112.1 Annual rent for council
 - § FA-112.1:1 Commentary
- 113 Timber cruise

PART 8 ROADS AND RIGHTS OF WAY

- § FA-P8:1 Commentary
- © 2022 Thomson Reuters, Rel. 1, 9/2022

- 114 Definitions
- Road permits and road use permits for timber harvesting
 - § FA-115:1 Commentary
- 116 Right to harvest Crown timber
- Road use permits for industrial use
 - § FA-117:1 Commentary
- 118 Road permit content
 - § FA-118:1 Commentary
- 118.1 Deactivation of roads authorized under road permits
- Road use permit content
- Right of way across private land [Repealed. 2003, c. 32, s. 23]
- 120.1 Declaration of forest service road
- 121 Road and trail construction
 - § FA-121:1 Commentary

PART 9 MARINE LOG SALVAGE

- § FA-P9:1 Commentary
- 121.1 Definition for Part 9 [Repealed. 2011, c. 13, s. 88]
- 122 Log salvage district
- 123 Receiving station licence
 - § FA-123:1 Commentary
- 124 Log salvage permit
 - § FA-124:1 Commentary
- 125 Disposal and acquisition of salvaged logs
 - § FA-125:1 Commentary
- 126 Area closure
 - § FA-126:1 Commentary

PART 10 MANUFACTURE IN BRITISH COLUMBIA

- § FA-P10:1 Commentary
- 127 Crown timber to be used in British Columbia
 - § FA-127:1 Commentary
- 127.1 Attempt to export Crown timber
- 128 Exemptions
 - § FA-128:1 Commentary
- 129 Exemption conditions and permit

PART 11 RECOVERY OF MONEY, MISCELLANEOUS

§ FA-P11:1 Commentary

DIVISION 1 RECOVERY OF MONEY

- 130 Lien
 - § FA-130:1 Commentary
- 130.1 Limitation period
- Person acquiring or dealing in timber responsible for payment
 - § FA-131:1 Commentary
- 132 Removal permit
 - § FA-132:1 Commentary

133 Powers cumulative

DIVISION 2 MISCELLANEOUS

- 134 Mill licences [Repealed. 1999, c. 10, s. 17]
- Wood residue prices [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 64]
- 136 Records and returns
 - § FA-136:1 Commentary
- 136.1 Limits on disclosure of reported information
 - § FA-136.1:1 Commentary
- 136.2 Information about security interests held in agreement
- 136.3 Information about affiliates of corporate agreement holders
- 137 Entry on land
- Power to stop and inspect vehicles and vessels [Repealed. 2003, c. 55, s. 87]
- 139 Duty to stop [Repealed. 2003, c. 55, s. 87]
- 140 How notice or document may be served
 - § FA-140:1 Commentary
- 141 Extension of time
 - § FA-141:1 Commentary
- 141.1 Duty to comply with orders, exemptions and conditions
- 142 Personal liability
 - § FA-142:1 Commentary

PART 11.1 INSPECTIONS, AUDITS AND ASSESSMENTS

§ FA-P11.1:1 Commentary

DIVISION 1 INTERPRETATION AND APPLICATION

- 142.1 Definitions and application
 - § FA-142.1:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 INSPECTION AND COLLECTION OF INFORMATION

- 142.11 Officials
- 142.2 Entry on land or premises
- 142.21 Inspection
- 142.3 Retention of records
 - § FA-142.3:1 Commentary
- 142.31 Delivery of records
 - § FA-142.31:1 Commentary
- 142.4 Obligation of a forest revenue official
- 142.41 Obligation of person on request of forest revenue official
- 142.42 Penalty for failure to provide information
- 142.43 Order for compliance
- 142.5 Evidence

DIVISION 3 ASSESSMENT OF STUMPAGE, FEES IN LIEU, PENALTIES AND INTEREST

- 142.51 Assessment of estimated stumpage and interest
- 142.52 Assessment of estimated fee in lieu and interest
- 142.6 Period to be considered in making an assessment
- 142.61 Penalty
- 142.7 Payment of assessed amount
- 142.71 Notice of assessment
- 142.8 Serving a notice of assessment
- 142.81 Proof and onus

DIVISION 4 APPEALS OF ASSESSMENTS

- 142.9 Appeal to revenue minister
- 142.91 Appeal to court
- 142.92 Affect of pending appeals
- 142.921 Part 12 does not apply

DIVISION 5 GENERAL

- 142.93 Confidentiality
- 142.94 Regulations

PART 12 REVIEWS, APPEALS, REGULATIONS, PENALTIES

§ FA-P12:1 Commentary

DIVISION 1 REVIEWS

- 143 Determinations that may be reviewed
 - § FA-143:1 Commentary
- 144 Request for review
 - § FA-144:1 Commentary
- 145 Powers on review
 - § FA-145:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 APPEALS

- 146 Determinations that may be appealed
 - § FA-146:1 Commentary
- 146.1 Part 8.1 of Forest and Range Practices Act applies
- 147 Parties to Appeal
 - § FA-147:1 Commentary
- 148 Appeal [Repealed. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 148.1 Order for written submissions [Repealed. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 148.2 Interim orders [Repealed, 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 148.3 Open hearings [Repealed. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 148.4 Witnesses [Repealed. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 148.5 Contempt [Repealed. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 148.6 Evidence [Repealed. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 149 Powers of commission
 - § FA-149:1 Commentary

- 149.1 Decision of commission [Repealed. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]
- 149.2 Order for compliance
- 150 Appeal to the courts [*Repealed*. 2015, c. 10, s. 79]

DIVISION 2.1 APPEALS OF CONTRAVENTIONS

150.1 Forest and Range Practices Act applies to contravention appeals

DIVISION 3 REGULATIONS

- 151 Regulations
 - § FA-151:1 Commentary
- 151.01 Criteria for exercise of discretionary powers
- 151.1 Regulation making power to establish forest districts
 - § FA-151.1:1 Commentary
- 151.2 Community forest agreements—regulations [Repealed. R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 157, s. 151.2(4), effective August 31, 2001]
- 151.3 Area-based allowable annual cut
 - § FA-151.3:1 Commentary
- 151.4 Adapting cut control under this Act for the Forestry Revitalization Act
- 151.5 Adapting cut control for provisions respecting conversion of timber sale licences
- 151.51 Adapting cut control for provisions respecting first nations woodland licences
- 151.6 Regulation making power for fibre supply and forestry licence to cut
- 151.7 Regulation making power for first nations woodland licences
 - § FA-151.7:1 Commentary
- 151.8 Regulation making power in relation to dispositions of agreements and corporate changes of control and amalgamations
- 151.9 Regulation making power in relation to records and returns
- 152 Interpretation for sections 152 to 162
 - § FA-152:1 Commentary
- Requirement for written contracts and subcontracts
- 154 Assignability of contracts and subcontracts
- Mediation and arbitration under contracts and subcontracts
- 156 Register of Timber Harvesting Contract Mediators and Arbitrators
- 157 Requirements for replaceable contracts and subcontracts
- 157.1 Agreement to make a replaceable contract or subcontract nonreplaceable
- 157.2 Waiver by licensees, contractors and subcontractors of certain rights under regulations
- 158 Special provision for certain expired contracts
 - § FA-158:1 Commentary
- Applicability of certain prescribed provisions to existing contracts and subcontracts
- Non-compliance with prescribed requirements for contracts and subcontracts
 - § FA-160:1 Commentary
- Included regulatory powers for sections 152 to 161
- No compensation

DIVISION 4 OFFENCES AND PENALTIES

- 163 Fines
 - § FA-163:1 Commentary
- 163.1 Interference, non-compliance and misleading
 - § FA-163.1:1 Commentary
- 164 Part 3 offence
 - § FA-164:1 Commentary
- 164.1 Cancellation and disqualification
- Wood residue offence [Repealed. 2003, c. 31, s. 75]
- 165.1 Prohibition against restricting competition in sale or purchase of logs
 - § FA-165.1:1 Commentary
- 165.2 Remedies preserved
- 166 Officers of corporation
- Limitation on prosecution [Repealed. 2003, c. 55, s. 88]
- 167.1 Defences to a prosecution
- 167.2 Section 5 of the Offence Act
- 167.3 Part 6 of the Forest and Range Practices Act applies

PART 13 DESIGNATED AREAS

- § FA-P13:1 Commentary
- 168 Definition
- 169 Specifying Crown land as a designated area
 - § FA-169:1 Commentary
- 170 What is the effect of specifying a designated area?
 - § FA-170:1 Commentary
- 171 Conditions
- 172 Suspension and cancellation
- 173 Allowable annual cut and allowable harvest in a designated area
 - § FA-173:1 Commentary
- 173.1 Effect of reduction on annual allowable cut determination
 - § FA-173.1:1 Commentary
- 174 Order prevails
 - § FA-174:1 Commentary
- 175 Hearing not required
- 175.1 No compensation during first 4 years of designation
- 175.2 Compensation for 5th and subsequent years of designation
- 175.3 Set-off for benefits previously received
- 175.4 Limit on compensation

PART 14 NISGA'A FINAL AGREEMENT IMPLEMENTATION

- 176 Definitions [Repealed, 2014, c. 32, s. 29]
- 177 Allowable annual cut reductions resulting from the Nisga'a Final Agreement [Repealed by s. 179, effective May 10, 2002.]
- 178 Award of licences
- 179 Repeal

WILDFIRE ACT

§ WA:1 Summary of the Wildfire Act

- § WA:2 Commentary
- 1 Definitions
 - § WA-1:1 Commentary

PART 1 FOREST AND RANGE PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS

- 2 General duty to report fire
 - § WA-2:1 Commentary
- 3 Mishandling burning substances
 - § WA-3:1 Commentary
- 4 Use of open fires—application
- 5 Non-industrial use of open fires
 - § WA-5:1 Commentary
- 6 Industrial activities
 - § WA-6:1 Commentary
- 7 Hazard assessment and abatement
 - § WA-7:1 Commentary

PART 2 AUTHORITY OF GOVERNMENT FOR FIRE PREVENTION AND FIRE CONTROL

- 8 Policies and priorities for fire control
- 9 Government may carry out fire control
 - § WA-9:1 Commentary
- 10 Restrictions on open fires
 - § WA-10:1 Commentary
- 11 Restricted areas
 - § WA-11:1 Commentary
- 12 Prohibited and restricted activities
 - § WA-12:1 Commentary
- 13 Requirement to leave specified area
 - § WA-13:1 Commentary
- 14 Notice of orders under sections 10 to 13
- 15 Temporary employees
- 16 Requisition of facilities, equipment and personnel
 - § WA-16:1 Commentary
- 17 Compensation for persons carrying out fire control
- 18 Right of government to use fire

PART 3 ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES AND COST RECOVERY

18.1 Applicability of sections 19 to 42 and 45 to 53 of this Act for the Forest Practices Code of British Columbia Act

DIVISION 1 RIGHTS OF ENTRY, INSPECTION, EXAMINATION AND ANALYSIS

- § WA-P3D1:1 Commentary
- 19 Entry onto land and premises
- Warrant to search and seize evidence
- 21 Inspection of vehicle or vessel
- 22 Obligations of person inspected
 - § WA-22:1 Commentary

- 23 Proof of official's identity
- 24 Peace officers may accompany

DIVISION 2 COST RECOVERY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES

- 25 Recovery of fire control costs and related amounts
 - § WA-25:1 Commentary
- 26 Contravention orders
 - § WA-26:1 Commentary
- 27 Administrative penalties and cost recovery
 - § WA-27:1 Commentary
- 28 Remediation orders
- 29 Defences in relation to administrative proceedings
 - § WA-29:1 Commentary
- 30 Vicarious liability
- 31 Extension of due date for administrative penalties and other charges, on review or appeal
- 32 Penalty revenue to be paid into special account
- 33 Limitation period
 - § WA-33:1 Commentary
- 34 Stop work order

DIVISION 3 CORRECTIONS, REVIEWS AND APPEALS

- 35 Correction of an order
- 36 Order stayed until proceedings concluded
- 37 Review of an order
- 38 Board may require review of an order
- 39 Appeal to the commission from an order
 - § WA-39:1 Commentary
- 40 Appeal to the commission by the board
- 40.1 Procedure on appeals
 - § WA-40.1:1 Commentary
- 41 Powers of commission
 - § WA-41:1 Commentary

PART 4 OFFENCES, COURT ORDERS AND PROCEEDINGS

DIVISION 1 LIMITATION PERIOD AND OFFENCES

- 42 Limitation period
- 43 Offences
- 44 Offence by directors and officers
- 45 Section 5 Offence Act.

DIVISION 2 COURT ORDERS

- 46 Court orders
- 47 Court orders on application by minister

DIVISION 3 PROVISIONS IN RELATION TO OFFENCES, LIABILITIES AND PROCEEDINGS

- 48 Penalty for monetary benefit
- 49 Employer liability
- 50 Defences to a prosecution
- 51 Remedies preserved
- 52 Proceedings for damages caused by fire [Repealed. 2007, c. 18, s. 100]
- 53 Limitation on proceedings

PART 5 GENERAL

DIVISION 1 EXERCISE OF DISCRETION AND PROHIBITIONS

- 54 Power to impose conditions
- 55 Powers cumulative
- 56 Interference, non-compliance and misleading
 - § WA-56:1 Commentary
- 57 Whistle-blower protection
 - § WA-57:1 Commentary

DIVISION 2 POWERS OF THE MINISTER

- 58 Delegation
- 59 Extension of time
- 60 Power to enter into agreements

DIVISION 3 LIBEL PROTECTION, CONFIDENTIALITY AND DISCLOSURE

- 61 Protection against libel and slander
- 62 Confidentiality and disclosure

DIVISION 4 MISCELLANEOUS

- 63 How notice may be given
- 64 Evidence of designation or delegation
- 65 Appropriation
- 66 Cost of performing obligations
- 66.1 Personal liability protection

PART 6 FOREST PRACTICES BOARD

- 67 Definition of "party" for section 68
- 68 Audits and special investigations

PART 7 REGULATIONS

- 69 Power to make regulations
- 70 Exemptions
- 71 Criteria for exercise of discretionary powers
- 72 Protection of forest resources
- 73 Notification requirements
- 74 Administrative remedies
- 75 Reconsideration

- 76 Forms and furnishing of information
- 77 Fees for service
- 78 Security
- 79 Recovery of money
- 80 Forest Practices Board

PART 8 TRANSITIONAL

81 Implementation regulations [Repealed. 2004, c. 31, s. 81(3)]

FORESTRY SERVICE PROVIDERS PROTECTION ACT

1 Definitions and application

PART 1 LIENS AND CHARGES

- 2 Contractor's lien
- 3 Discharge of contractor's lien
- 4 Registration of contractor's lien
- 5 Priority of contractor's lien
- 6 Contractor's charge
- 7 Discharge of contractor's charge
- 8 Registration of contractor's charge
- 9 Priority of contractor's charge
- 10 Payment by account debtor of forest products owner
- 11 Subcontractor's charge
- 12 Discharge of subcontractor's charge
- 13 Registration of subcontractor's charge
- 14 Priority of subcontractor's charge
- 15 Payment by account debtor of contractor
- 16 Discharge of invalid registration
- 17 Seizure and sale of forest products
- 18 Distribution of lien fund
- 19 Distribution of charge fund
- 20 Registration
- 21 Court orders
- 22 Certain agreements or undertakings void
- 23 Notice of lien or charge
- 24 Service of notices and demands

PART 2 FORESTRY SERVICE PROVIDERS COMPENSATION FUND

- 25 Definitions
- 26 Forestry Service Providers Compensation Fund
- 27 Payments to fund
- 28 Applications for compensation
- 29 Payments from fund
- 30 Decision is final
- 31 Designation of authority
- 32 Administrative agreement
- 33 Authority not an agent of government

PART 3 GENERAL

- 33.1 Personal Property Security Act
- 34 Section 5 of Offence Act
- 35 Regulations
- 36 Consequential Amendments [Repealed. 2012, c. 14, s. 8]
- 37 Commencement

APPENDICES

Appendix A. Regulations under the Forest Act

- Appendix A1. Administrative Boundaries Regulation, B.C. Reg. 137/2014
- Appendix A2. Advertising, Deposits, Disposition and Extension Regulation, B.C. Reg. 55/2006
- Appendix A3. Allowable Annual Cut Administration Regulation, B.C. Reg. 69/2009
- Appendix A4. Allowable Annual Cut Partition Regulation, B.C. Reg. 32/2011
- Appendix A5. Annual Rent Regulation, B.C. Reg. 122/2003
- Appendix A6. BC Timber Sales Account Regulation, B.C. Reg. 9/2014
- Appendix A7. BC Timber Sales Business Area Regulation, B.C. Reg. 243/2003 [repealed]
- Appendix A8. BC Timber Sales Regulation, B.C. Reg. 381/2008, Sch. A
- Appendix A9. Christmas Tree Regulation, B.C. Reg. 166/2000
- Appendix A10. Community Tenures Regulation, B.C. Reg. 352/2004
- Appendix A11. Cut Control Regulation, B.C. Reg. 578/2004
- Appendix A12. Cutting Permit Postponement Regulation, B.C. Reg. 284/2007
- Appendix A13. Disposition and Change of Control Regulation, B.C. Reg. 351/2004
- Appendix A14. Effective Director Regulation, B.C. Reg. 243/94
- Appendix A15. First Nation Tenures Regulation, B.C. Reg. 104/2011
- Appendix A16. Forest Accounts Receivable Interest Regulation, B.C. Reg. 406/98
- Appendix A17. Forest Licence Regulation, B.C. Reg. 203/2012, Sch. 2
- Appendix A18. Forest Revenue Audit Regulation, B.C. Reg. 319/2006
- Appendix A19. Licence to Cut Regulation, B.C. Reg. 221/2006
- Appendix A20. Free Use Permit Regulation, B.C. Reg. 335/99
- Appendix A21. Innovative Forestry Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 197/97
- Appendix A22. Interest Rate Under Various Statutes Regulation, B.C. Reg. 386/92

Appendix A23.	Log Salvage Regulation for the Vancouver Log Salvage District, B.C. Reg. 220/81
Appendix A24.	Manufactured Forest Products Regulation, B.C. Reg. 240/2003
Appendix A25.	Minimum Stumpage Rate Regulation, B.C. Reg. 354/87
Appendix A26.	Mountain Pine Beetle Salvage Area No. 3, B.C. Reg. 245/2008
Appendix A27.	Performance Based Harvesting Regulation, B.C. Reg. 175/95
Appendix A28.	Refusal of Cutting Permit or Road Permit Regulation, B.C. Reg. 252/2018
Appendix A29.	Scaling Regulation, B.C. Reg. 446/94
Appendix A30.	Special Forest Products Regulation, B.C. Reg. 241/2003, Sch.
Appendix A31.	Surrender Regulation, B.C. Reg. 181/2016
Appendix A32.	Timber Definition Regulation, B.C. Reg. 401/87
Appendix A33.	Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation, B.C. Reg. 22/96
Appendix A34.	Timber Marking and Transportation Regulation, B.C. Reg. 253/97
Appendix A35.	Tree Farm Licence Area-Based Allowable Annual Cut Trial Program Regulation, B.C. Reg. 482/2004
Appendix A36.	Tree Farm Licence Management Plan Regulation, B.C. Reg. 280/2009
Appendix A37.	Waste Assessment Regulation, B.C. Reg. 262/2019
Appendix A38.	Woodlot Licence Regulation, B.C. Reg. 68/2006, Sch. A
	Volume 2
Appendix B.	Regulations under the Forest and Range Practices Act
Appendix B1.	Administrative Orders and Remedies Regulation, B.C. Reg. 101/2005
Appendix B2.	Administrative Review and Appeal Procedure Regulation, B.C. Reg. 12/2004
Appendix B3.	Forest Planning and Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 14/2004
Appendix B4.	Forest Practices Board Regulation, B.C. Reg. 15/2004
Appendix B5.	Forest Recreation Regulation, B.C. Reg. 16/2004
Appendix B6.	Forest Service Road Use Regulation, B.C. Reg. 70/2004
Appendix B7.	Government Actions Regulation, B.C. Reg. 582/2004
Annendix B8	Invasive Plants Regulation B.C. Reg. 18/2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Appendix B9. Range Planning and Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 19/2004

Appendix B10. Security for Forest and Range Practice Liabilities Regulation, B.C. Reg. 20/2004

Appendix B11. Special Tree Protection Regulation, B.C. Reg. 229/2020

Appendix B12. Tree Seeds and Services Regulation, B.C. Reg. 138/2019

Appendix B13. Woodlot Licence Planning and Practices Regulation, B.C. Reg. 21/2004

Appendix C. Regulations under the Forest Practices Code of British Columbia Act

Appendix C1. Fort St. John Pilot Project Regulation, B.C. Reg. 278/2001

Appendix C2. Provincial Forest Use Regulation, B.C. Reg. 176/95 Appendix C3. Stillwater Pilot Project Regulation, B.C. Reg. 96/2001

Appendix D. Regulations under the Wildfire Act

Appendix D1. Wildfire Regulation, B.C. Reg. 38/2005

Appendix E. Regulations under the Forestry Service Providers Protection Act

Appendix E1. Forestry Service Providers Compensation Fund Regulation, B.C. Reg. 64/2012

Appendix F. Glossary

Appendix TC. Tables of Concordance
Appendix WP. Words and Phrases

Table of Cases

Index